
CC Minutes 10‐01‐13 

 1 

   City of Washington Terrace 2 

_________________________________________________ 3 

Minutes of a Regular City Council meeting 4 

held on October 1, 2013 5 

City Hall, 5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City, 6 

County of Weber, State of Utah 7 

                      8 

MAYOR, COUNCIL, AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT 9 
Mayor Mark C. Allen 10 

Council Member Mary Johnston 11 

Council Member Blair Brown 12 

Council Member Robert Jensen                   13 

Council Member Scott Monsen 14 

Council Member Val Shupe            15 

City Manager Tom Hanson 16 

City Recorder Amy Rodriguez 17 

Public Works Director Steve Harris 18 

Attorney Bill Morris 19 

 20 

Others Present 21 
Charles and Reba Allen, Dell Kraaima, Tyler Burnett, William Burnett, Denise Burnett, Bryson 22 

Burnett, Heidi Valdez 23 
 24 
1.     ROLL CALL                                                  6:00 P.M 25 

 26 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 27 

 28 

3. WELCOME 29 

 30 

4.     CONSENT ITEMS 31 

 32 

4.1 APPROVAL OF AGENDA 33 

       4.2 APPROVAL OF SEPTEMBER 17, 2013, MEETING MINUTES          34 
Items 4.1 and 4.2 approved by general consent. 35 

 36 

 5.     CITIZEN COMMENTS 37 
There were no citizen comments. 38 

 39 

 6.    COUNCIL/STAFF RESPONSE AND CONSIDERATION TO CITIZEN 40 

       COMMENTS 41 
Due to lack of citizen comments in item 6, item 7 is unnecessary. 42 

 43 

 7.    NEW BUSINESS 44 

       45 

       7.1 PRESENTATION: SIEMENS INDUSTRY ENERGY AUDIT  46 



CC Minutes 10‐01‐13 

            PRESENTATION 47 
Hanson introduced Mark Cram as the representative from Siemens Industry. Cram explained that 48 

legislation was passed in 2010 concerning improvements to infrastructure and energy savings. 49 

He stated that his company would identify projects that fall within a timeframe (10-15 years) for 50 

improvements that would generate savings and in time the savings would fund the projects. He 51 

stated that operating cost lines would be lowered throughout the improvements. Cram stated that 52 

his company would perform a feasibility preliminary audit explaining savings potential. He 53 

stated that the firm would help the city maximize building, street lighting, or infrastructure 54 

energy savings. He stated that he has spoken with Hanson concerning potential projects which 55 

include street-lighting, automated meter readings, and building re-commissioning. 56 

Hanson stated that the quality of lighting poles and maintenance are a concern to him. Hanson 57 

stated that this project has some merit. Council Member Brown asked if the company would be 58 

able to help with water costs through water metering. Cram stated that they would be able to and 59 

highlighted some of the project accomplishments that the firm has completed. 60 

Council Member Johnston stated that it would be wise to look at this project to see what can be 61 

accomplished for our city, noting that she knows that larger entities have saved substantially with 62 

the help of these projects. 63 

Council Member Jensen inquired if the firm has worked with smaller cities. Cram said that they 64 

have even though the legislation in Utah is fairly new. 65 

Mayor Allen stated that he believes this would be a good project to look into, especially since the 66 

analysis would be free of charge. 67 

Cram stated that he would work with Hanson on some preliminary work before it is brought back 68 

before Council for a formal motion. 69 

 70 

       7.2 PRESENTATION: PUBLIC WORKS SUMMER PROJECTS UPDATE 71 
Harris presented an update on the following projects: 72 

- Rohmer Park Road Project: Public Works was involved in the inspections, overseeing of 73 

irrigation, installation of irrigation lines, and planted trees. 74 

- 450 West Reconstruction Project: Project is almost complete, but some cement work is 75 

still needed.  76 

- Adams Ave. Utility Project: The project is expected to be completed in November. Harris 77 

stated that the project is half way completed. Harris stated that the Department is 78 

overseeing design, coordinating pipe replacement, reinstallation of metering, and 79 

installing the SCADA system. 80 

- Adams Ave. Design: Harris stated that this project is scheduled to take place next year. 81 

He stated that he is in the process of trying to secure funding to make the road wide 82 

enough to meet the requirements of a UDOT road in the event that the road opens up in 83 

the future. 84 

- Water Line repairs: Harris stated that the department repaired over 14 water line breaks 85 

this summer. Harris stated that it was unclear if the breaks were due to the heat. 86 

- Garbage Cans: The crew replaced over 130 garbage cans this summer.  87 

- Detention Basins: Harris stated that the detention basin has been cleaned out and the 88 

sediment has been removed. 89 

- Meter Reads: The Badger Meter Read system has been brought online. Harris stated that 90 

there are currently 1000 meters still being read by hand. 91 

- Trip Hazards: Harris stated that the city trip hazards have been identified. 92 



CC Minutes 10‐01‐13 

- Water Sewer Utility Maps: The maps have been updated and are kept in all the vehicles. 93 

- Easement agreements: Three easements were negotiated to include Ogden Regional 94 

Hospital, Rocky Mountain Power, and Weber Basin Conservancy District. 95 

- Pothole repairs. 96 

- Eagle Scout Projects: Harris stated that five Eagle Scout projects have been completed 97 

this summer. 98 

Council Member Shupe asked about the water main break on 500 West and inquired why it took 99 

a long time to re-pave the road. Harris stated that the water damage to the road had to be 100 

excavated and repaired. He stated that the process takes time so that the fix is compacted and 101 

long lasting. Hanson stated that he appreciates Harris and his crew and the hard work that they 102 

do. 103 

       7.3 TRAINING: OPEN MEETINGS ACT AND NON-DISCRIMINATION  104 

            ANNUAL TRAINING 105 
Attorney Bill Morris presented the annual training to Council. 106 

 107 

8.     COUNCIL COMMUNICATION WITH STAFF 108 
* Council Member Jensen expressed his thanks to the Sheriff Office for monitoring the speed 109 

along Ridgeline Drive. 110 

* Council Member Shupe asked if Council would entertain staff bringing back something to 111 

Council in regards to the campaign sign ordinance and timeframes for posting. Council agreed to 112 

have the topic reviewed. 113 

* Mayor Allen stated that he has also heard many great comments concerning the speed 114 

enforcement in the city and appreciates the officers’ assistance. 115 

       116 

9.     ADMINISTRATION REPORTS 117 
* Hanson stated that he has spoken with the Sheriff’s Office concerning an ATV ordinance 118 

allowing ATV’s on the street as long as they are street legal. Council Member Shupe asked if an 119 

ordinance will affect those who use the four wheelers to clear snow. Hanson stated that he 120 

assumes that they would be enforced the same way. Council Member Jensen stated that the 121 

genesis of this started in small rural towns and noted that safety problems have occurred. Council 122 

Member Johnston stated that she would rather see the ATV’s on the road with the legal 123 

provisions than off to the side of the road with dangerous conditions. She noted that there have 124 

been several retired residents who have approached her about making ATV’s street legal. 125 

Council Member Shupe stated that he is concerned with having street legal four wheelers on the 126 

road because some four wheelers are driven without seatbelts or helmets and may be unsafe. 127 

Council Member Brown stated that he also has safety concerns and does not want to encourage 128 

people to ride four wheelers on the streets. Mayor Allen asked to review the state code. 129 

 130 

*Hanson stated that the Federal Health Care Act began today and he noted that many of the 131 

associated problems do not apply because we employ fewer than 50 employees. 132 

 133 

*Hanson stated that there will be a tribute to the Sisters of St. Benedict on October 17th. He 134 

stated that he would like a representative to attend the event, but would be able to buy a table if 135 

requested by Council. It was decided that the Mayor and his wife would attend the event. 136 

 137 

10.     UPCOMING EVENTS       138 



CC Minutes 10‐01‐13 

        October 14th: City offices closed for Columbus Day Holiday 139 

        October 15th: City Council Meeting 6:00 p.m. 140 

        October 24th: Planning Commission Meeting 6:00 p.m. 141 

       142 

11.     ADJOURN THE MEETING: MAYOR ALLEN 143 

 144 
Mayor Allen adjourned the meeting at 7:44 p.m. 145 

 146 

 147 

_______________________________    ______________________________ 148 

Date Approved                          City Recorder 149 

 150 

 151 


